Approved as Amended on June 19, 2018

Town of Fitzwilliam
Planning Board
Meeting Minutes
June 5, 2018

Member’s Present: Suzanne Gray; Ross Tourigny, Chairman; Terry Silverman; Robin Peard
Blais, Secretary; Paul Haynes, Vice Chair; Matt Buonomano; Charlie Kenison, Selectman’s Rep

Members Absent: Robert Young, Alternate; Carlotta Pini, Alternate
Others Present: Barbara Green, Conservation Commission; Bob Ford
CTO: 7:00 PM

NextEra Letter Draft. 7:01 PM.
Tourigny discussed the draft of the second letter to be sent out to the NextEra with the Board.

Gray discussed that she felt the letter was well-written, but wondered if it would be beneficial to
be more specific. Gray discussed with the Board that when she had spoken with NextEra at their
information session in late May, they reported to her that NextEra had met with Fish & Game
several times. Gray added that she had asked if minutes or notes from those meetings could be
forwarded to the Town for their review as well. Gray explained that one project member had
taken Gray’s contact information, however she never received anything. Silverman agreed and
discussed that the letter should specifically list the Town ordinances and regulations that
NextEra would be expected to adhere to.

Ford discussed a letter he had written and emailed to the Board and SEC regarding NextEra’s
proposed project. For explained that he felt he needed to write a letter to NextEra to address his
concerns about the project, noting that he has not sent it to NextEra at this time and wanted to
ensure he wasn’t “stepping on the toes” of the Board. The Board encouraged Ford, as a
community member, to send a letter with his concerns. The Board clarified that they are not
endorsing his letter, but want to encourage any community member or interested party to reach
out with their comments, questions, and concerns.

Silverman discussed the Selectmen’s letter regarding the % lot coverage question. Silverman
responded that he felt the Planning Board can’t prematurely make a decision and respond to the
question considering there is no application. Tourigny discussed that he felt NextEra would be
sent to the Zoning Board of Adjustment (ZBA) for a Variance. Silverman responded that going to
the ZBA was an option, however the Planning Board also has the ability to waive requirements
of Site Plan Review.

Ford then discussed with the Board why he felt he needed to write a letter, explaining that the
size of the project is concerning to him. Ford discussed that the area for the proposed project

Page 1|5



Approved as Amended on June 19, 2018

contains key natural resources for the Town such as prime agricultural land and prime wildlife
habitat. Ford also expressed that he notices a pattern of utility companies coming in and taking
advantage of the Town and resources. Ford discussed his perspective on the proposed project,
adding that he has ample experience as sitting as Town Council for other towns for utility
projects. Ford added that he felt a project of this scale requires a good amount of pushback from
the Town in order to properly negotiate the best possible outcome.

Gray discussed that she talked with NextEra representatives at the May informational session
and had tried to strongly impress upon them that Fitzwilliam community members highly value
the wetlands, viewsheds, and other natural resources, and that many have chosen to live in
Fitzwilliam because of the presence of such natural resources, clarifying that this is why the
Town feels so strongly they need to be protected and properly planned for. Blais added that
when she had talked with NextEra representatives at the informational session, they disagreed
with her that there would be any viewshed impacts. Ford discussed that he felt if there was to be
a solar energy facility of the scale NextEra is proposing, then there would be a significant impact
on town resources. Ford discussed the potential externalities such as impacts to Scott Brook, the
viewshed driving North on Route 12, to the recreational tourism that helps Kev’s Kayaks.

Tourigny asked Ford if he had any insight on how utility companies typically approach Towns
for such projects. Ford discussed that in his experience, these people approach the Planning
Board office. Ford explained that it’s usually the job of that administrator to convey “the
temperature of the Planning Board.” Ford discussed that if the Town writes another letter then it
should clearly outline the Planning Board’s questions and list the regulations/ordinance that are
expected to be adhered to.

Blais asked about the leases of property that had been deforested, Ford responded it was likely
an “Option of Purchase,” adding that he was unsure of what a “lease of purchase” was. Ford
explained the concept of Option to Purchase and how these may affect the landowners involved.

Buonomano discussed his concern for misguided political approval of solar energy, explaining
that solar is often marketed as a clean energy. Buonomano described that for example, Laurel
Lake is 160 acres and the land deforested for the proposed project is twice that amount. Ford
discussed that he particularly perturbed that this proposed project is planned to use land which
requires it to be cleared of vegetation instead of utilizing a pre-disturbed site. Ford discussed
that he felt that the proposed project violates a significant amount of the Town’s regulations, as
well as goals laid out within the Master Plan, Open Space Plan, Groundwater Protection Plan,
and other publications.

Gray discussed her concern that the solar energy being produced would not be benefiting the
community or people in New Hampshire, and that it would likely be leaving the state to be used
elsewhere. Blais and Ford discussed the concept of asking for conservation easements or a
conservation fund in the negotiation. Tourigny discussed that he’s wondering what the best net
gain could be for the Town, but that the Planning Board would need input from the Fitzwilliam
community.

Page 2|5



Approved as Amended on June 19, 2018

Tourigny discussed that the conversations thus far with NextEra had not answered any
questions and had been very vague overall. Buonomano explained that he had researched how
there are places where the undergrowth growing back has destroyed solar installations in 3 to 4
years, noting that in the location of the proposed project, there is already regrowth.

Blais discussed that NextEra claims they wouldn’t be using any herbicides and fertilizers and
asked how the Town police that. Ford responded that NextEra should be providing expertise to
the Town. Ford added that for a company like NextEra, they are completely expecting to have to
provide expertise. Ford discussed that the Board should have experts lined up, hired by the
Planning Board, and paid by NextEra.

Blais discussed that she felt the letter needed to be worded more strongly which the Board
agreed with. Silverman discussed that they may need to be stiffer in asking for certain
regulations to be met. Tourigny and the Board discussed adding language to the letter. Ford
suggested reaching out to towns with solar arrays or similar size. Silverman added that the letter
could say that the Town expects NextEra “understands that all our local ordinances need to be
followed.” The Board discussed adding a sentence about how they are receiving feedback and
concerns from community members.

Blais suggested that the Board request a site walk of the property in the letter. Buonomano
suggested the Planning Board ask about hiring someone to take aerial photographs. Ford
responded that a Board asking for something like a site walk is not unreasonable at all.

The Board thanked Ford for his time and Ford left the meeting at 8:18 PM.

Gray suggested that the letter reiterate that the Town expects NextEra to meet the regulations of
the local ordinances and Gray and Blais discussed that they would like to ask for a site walk as
soon as possible. Silverman added that he felt it was premature to ask for a site walk considering
they don’t know much about the proposal and there’s no application.

Silverman suggested that the language be added to the letter reading as: “as part of the
application, NextEra needs to go through and show adherence to our solar ordinance as well as
meeting the requirements of all applicable ordinances.” Tourigny added that the SEC address
does not need to be included as there is no formal docket yet. Silverman noted that as the
project proposal progresses that the Board should work with Art Cunningham for legal
guidance, noting that Cunningham had worked with the Town on the quarry project.

Prime Wetlands. 8:26 PM

Blais and Green discussed the formation of the Prime Wetlands Committee. Blais asked if Rick
Brackett would be interested in being a part of the Committee again as the Conservation
Commission representative. Blais discussed with Kenison that the Committee would have a
representative from the Planning Board and Conservation Commission, and that the Selectmen
could appoint a representative as well, if interested. Blais added that the she is hoping Kenison
will work with the Selectmen on having Susan Silverman appointed as a member-at-large.

Page 3|5



Approved as Amended on June 19, 2018

Tourigny asked if there was any further discussion, there was not.

Planning Board Outreach Information. 8:36 PM.

Tourigny explained he had been reaching out to all the various boards to let them know the
Planning Board is very interested in keeping everyone in the loop with what goes on. Tourigny
explained he is trying to increase communications with the various boards such as the Zoning
Board of Adjustment and Select Board. Silverman discussed that the Planning Board has a
representative who is supposed to relay information, adding that the Selectmen usually read
through Planning Board minutes.

Tourigny and Silverman discussed working with the Selectmen to improve communication.
Silverman discussed that the information being given should come from the whole board rather
than a single person. Tourigny responded that the boards should be in the loop and Silverman
agreed but expressed that the Planning Board should be doing it through the planning secretary.

Gray discussed that she felt it would be helpful to formally invite members of other
boards/committees to come and give feedback, particularly when drafting ordinances.

Discussion of Land Use Department. 8:45 PM

Tourigny discussed that Carlotta Pini had offered to stand in as the Land Use Assistant until the
Planning Board is able to find a replacement. The Board discussed the matter and expressed
their gratitude that Pini offered to step in. Gray asked to recommend to the Board of Selectmen
that Pini be appointed to temporary Land Use Assistant.

Silverman asked if the Selectmen would be doing the supervising and hiring of the new Land
Use Assistant. Tourigny responded that the Planning Board would do the hiring and that he, the
Planning Board Chairman, would continue to supervise. Silverman discussed he couldn’t
understand how the Town expects to find a competent person to work 5 days a week and be paid
so little and for so few hours. Silverman added that if they are trying to find someone with
expertise, then the Selectmen would be severely limiting amount of perspective applications.

Silverman discussed that he felt there was an illusion in the Selectmen’s office that research and
workload is based solely on cases, and not any other research for the Town. Silverman advocated
that there is always work that needs to be done and that it’s a naive assessment that it has to do
with the amount of cases per month or year.

Gray discussed that the recommendations of the LUA was to eliminate the work load in order to
make it a 25 hour-a-week position and that she is concerned that in order for a lot of the work to
get done, the Boards would need to contract out. Gray added that those people would need to be
paid to research, write documents, attend meetings, etc and that she felt it would end up costing
the Town more.

Page 4|5



Approved as Amended on June 19, 2018

The Board discussed the needs of the Zoning Board and how the LUA often does legal research
for them. Buonomano discussed that the position has a variety of specialized skills and
suggested adding part time positions to cover those responsibilities. Silverman responded that it
wouldn’t be financial viable for the Town to have several people in place of one who could be
full-time.

Gray discussed that she was concerned the new LUA position description would not attracted
qualified-enough people to apply for the position. Blais asked Kenison if the Selectmen made the
decision to make the LUA position part-time for financial reasons and Kenison responded that
he believes it was for financial purposes and that he hasn’t been on the Board long enough to
speak more to the reasoning for it. Gray asked what the hours for the LUA currently are and the
LUA responded it is set at 25 hours with a maximum of 30 hours. Gray discussed that the
original posting from the Board was 25 to 30 hours per week with no benefits.

Minutes of May. 9:10 PM.
Gray noted that Line 62 should say “allowed to sunset.”

Blais moved to accept the minutes as amended, Gray seconded, and the Board agreed
unanimously.

Tourigny moved to adjourn, Silverman seconded, and the board adjourned at 9:18 PM.

Page 5|5



